## STATEMENT OF ISSUES

#### **ISSUE ONE**

APPELLANT SUFFERED A VIOLATION OF DUE PROCESS OF, IN VIOLATION OF THE 5TH AND 14TH AMENDMENT, WHEN THE PROSECUTION WITHHELD INFORMATION FROM APPELLANT THAT THE CO-DEFENDANTS INTENDED TO TESTIFY FOR THE PROSECUTION, UNTIL THE DAY OF THE TRIAL.

## **ISSUE TWO**

APPELLANT WAS PROVIDED WITH INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL, IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

#### **ISSUE THREE**

THE PROSECUTION DEPRIVED AND INTERFERED WITH APPELLANT'S RIGHT TO KNOWLEDGE OF THE EVIDENCE AGAINST HIM IN ORDER TO COERCE AND ENTICE A PLEA OF GUILTY, IN VIOLATION OF THE 5TH AND 14TH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

### **ISSUE FOUR**

APPELLANT SUFFERED A VIOLATION OF HIS CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS UNDER THE 5TH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WHERE RECORDS WERE WITHHELD UPON NUMEROUS REQUESTS IN REGARDS TO PREPARATION OF HIS POST CONVICTION COLLATERAL RELIEF MOTION.

# **ISSUE FIVE**

THAT THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO ADDRESS THE ISSUES OF THE POST CONVICTION RELIEF MOTION OR TO CONDUCT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING AND FAILED TO COMPLY WITH THE POST CONVICTION RELIEF STATUTE WHERE COURT DENIED SUMMARILY DENIED THE MOTION WITHOUT REVIEWING THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE PLEA SINCE THE PLEA TRANSCRIPT WAS NOT MADE AVAILABLE UNTIL IT WAS TRANSCRIBED BY THE COURT REPORTER ON DECEMBER 17, 2009 AND FILED WITH THE CIRCUIT COURT CLERK ON THE SAME DAY.

## STATEMENT OF INCARCERATION

The Appellant is presently incarcerated and is being housed in the custody of the Mississippi Department of Corrections where he is being housed at the Central Mississippi Correctional Facility, Pearl, Mississippi, in service of the prison term imposed as a result of the conviction which is the subject of this action. Appellant has been continuously confined in regards to such sentence since date of conviction and imposition by the trial court.

## STATEMENT OF CASE

Larry Evans was indicted on November 3, 2005, in the Circuit Court of the First Judicial District of Hinds County Mississippi in a four (4) count indictment. Appellant Evans subsequently entered a plea of guilty to the armed robbery and manslaughter and was sentenced to a total sentence of 35 years, as a habitual offender, in the custody of the Mississippi Department of Corrections. (R. 10-11)

Appellant subsequently provided his post conviction motion (PCR) to the Circuit Clerk which was filed by the Clerk on December 10, 2008. (R. 27-70) The trial court without a hearing or reviewing the plea colloquy transcript, entered an order summarily denying the post conviction motion on December 04, 2008, which was filed December 10, 2008. (R. 27)

## STANDARD OF REVIEW

In reviewing a trial court's decision to deny a motion for post-conviction relief the standard of review for this court is clear. The trial court's denial will not be reversed absent a finding that the trial court's decision was clearly erroneous. <u>Kirksey v State</u>, 728 So.2d 565, 567 (Miss. 1999).

In the instant case, well-settled law dictates that the trial court's decision was clearly erroneous since the trial court failed follow the requirements of the post conviction collateral relief act which requires that the court review the complete record, together with all the transcripts of the prior proceedings, before summarily denying the post conviction motion and the court failed to fully address all substantial and meritorious claims made by Evans in the motion, i.e., the record clearly demonstrates that Appellant Evans suffered constitutional violations where the trial court accepted the plea of guilty and sentenced Evans as a habitual offender without the indictment complying with the habitual offender requirements and Rule 11.03(1) of the Miss. Rules of Cir. and Cty Court Practice. Rule 11.03(1). The sentence imposed upon Evans, without compliance with the law, constitutes an illegal sentence where the court was deprived of it's jurisdiction by absence of compliance with Rule 11.03(1) of the Miss. Rules of Cir. and Cty Court Practice. While the state will argue that such claim was not presented to the trial court, Appellant would assert that an illegal sentence issue may be presented at any posture of the case and at any time. Even those claims presented to the trial court were never heard which demonstrates that presentation of this claim would not have mattered. Additionally, the record reflects and confirms that Evans never fully admitted the elements required for an armed robbery and manslaughter conviction under the standards and elements required by statute. The trial

court should have allowed Evans an evidentiary hearing on the claims before summarily dismissing the motion.

#### **SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT**

Larry Evans was effectively charged with two crimes in the indictment. The first crime being armed robbery. Evans should have been prosecuted under the initial charge where the allegations of the indictment constitute two offenses. The lesser included should have been applied.

#### ARGUMENT

### **ISSUE ONE**

APPELLANT SUFFERED A VIOLATION OF DUE PROCESS OF, IN VIOLATION OF THE 5TH AND 14TH AMENDMENT, WHEN THE PROSECUTION WITH-HELD INFORMATION FROM APPELLANT THAT THE CO-DEFENDANTS INTENDED TO TESTIFY FOR THE PROSECUTION, UNTIL THE DAY OF THE TRIAL.

Appellant would assert to this Court that his rights to due process under the 14th

Amendment of the United States Constitution, and Article 3, §14 of the Mississippi Constitution

were violated by the Assistant District Attorney, Rebecca Mansell's failure to notify the

Appellant, until right before trial, to wit, 10 days before trial, that the co-defendant's, Rufus

Smith and William Thomas, were scheduled to testify against Appellant, thus putting the blame

strictly on the Appellant. However, it was prosecutorial error, because the information was not

included in the Appellant's discovery- exculpatory evidence. The prosecution intentionally

with-held this information from Appellant to manipulate a plea of guilty "Suppression by the

prosecution of evidence favorable to an accused who has requested it violates due process where

the evidence is material either to guilt or to punishment, irrespective of the good faith of the

prosecution." Brandy v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83; 8 S. Ct. 1194; 10 L.Ed.2d 215, 1963 U.S. Lesis

1615. The Supreme Court of Mississippi applies the four-part Brandy violation test adopted in King v. State, 656 So.2d 1168, 1174 (Miss. 1995) under which the defendant must prove; (A) That the State possessed evidence favorable to the defendant, (including impeachment evidence). (B). That the defendant does not possess the evidence, nor could he have obtained it himself with any reasonable diligence; (C) That the Prosecution suppressed the evidence, favorable to the Defendant; (D) That had the evidence been disclosed to the defense, a reasonable probability exist that the outcome of the proceeding would have been different. The Appellant claims he is entitled to a review of his sentence, and of the matter which is now in question. In the Post-Conviction Collateral Relief Act, Section 99-39-5, (21) II. Under Former §99-35-145: In general, it states "This section (Code 1942, §1992.5) provides a comprehensive procedure for the rehearing of criminal cases wherein errors of a constitutional nature have occurred." King v. Cook, 287 F.Supp. 269 (N.D. Miss 1968). Suppressing evidence that could have made a difference in my sentence, is definitely of constitutional nature, it violates due process. Furthermore, the United States Constitution, Amendment 14,§1 defines the definition of due process in legal terms as "An established course for judicial proceedings and case law providing standards for fair treatment of citizens by Federal, State, and Local Government. The standards are known as Due Process. When a person is treated unfairly by the Government, including the Court's he is said to have been deprived of or denied due process."

#### **ISSUE TWO**

APPELLANT WAS PROVIDED WITH INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL, IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION WHERE DEFENSE COUNSEL, INTER ALIA, FAILED TO INVESTIGATE OBJECT TO THE HABITUAL STATUS OF THE INDICTMENT AND WHERE SUCH LANGUAGE OF THE INDICTMENT AND PROOF OF PRIOR CONVICTIONS DID NOT SUBSTANTIATE HABITUAL STATUS.

That the Petitioner's right to effective assistance of counsel under the 6th Amendment and the 14th Amendment of the United States Constitution, as well as Article 3, §26 guarantees persons accused of a crime, the right to counsel is the right to effective assistance of counsel. McMann v. Richardson, 397 U.S. 759, 771, n. 14 (1970), also see, Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668; 104 S. Ct. 2052; 80 L.Ed2d 674; 1984 U.S. Lexis 79. Failure to have effective assistance of counsel, and then rendering a conviction, violates due process. Cuyler v. Sullivan, 446 U.S. 335 (1980), at 344. In Strickland, the court stated then" when a defendant challenges a conviction, the question is whether there is a reasonable probability that, absent the errors, the fact finder would have had a reasonable doubt respecting guilt." The Appellant here claims that if his court appointed counsel would have done his job, and would have been properly prepared, there is a reasonable probability that he would have been given a different and lesser sentence. If the Appellant can establish a significant chance that the outcome would have been different, then surely he should be entitled to a redetermination of his fate. The Court's have defined "reasonable probability" as a "probability sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome." In view of the nature of the (sanction at issue), and the difficulty of determining how a sentence would have responded if presented with a different set of facts, it could be argued that a lower estimate of the likelihood that the outcome of the sentencing proceeding was influenced by Attorney error, which is sufficient to "undermine the confidence of the outcome." The core

example of Court Appointed Attorney's, such as, William Labarre who was appointed to represent the Appellant, is their failure to investigate available "Mitigating Evidence," so as to humanize the client, as did Mr. Labarre in this case. In Strickland v. Washington, 693 F.2d 1243, Id. at 1256-1257, n. 23, the court stated that "Among the factors relevant to deciding whether particular strategic choices are reasonable are "(the experience of he Attorney, the inconsistency of unpursued and pursued lines of defense, and the potential for prejudice from taking an unpursued line of defense." The fact of the matter is, the Petitioner's Court Appointed Attorney, William Labarre is just a Lawyer for Formality purposes, and not a Legal Advocate on the Petitioner's behalf. If Mr. Labarre had investigated the available Mitigating Evidence, then he would have, or should have presented the material at the plea hearing to Mitigate the sentence, instead of doing nothing, therefore the Appellant was subjected to unreasonable representation.

a violation of his Constitutional Right to Effective Assistance of Counsel.

Defense counsel never investigated the habitual portion of the indictment in regards to THE HABITUAL PORTION OF THE INDICTMENT, CHARGING APPELLANT AS A HABITUAL OFFENDER UNDER MISS. CODE ANN. §99-19-81, WAS DEFECTIVE AND FUNDAMENTALLY CONSTITUTIONALLY VOID WHERE THE INDICTMENT FAIL TO CHARGE, AND THE STATE FAILED TO INTRODUCE PROOF OF, THE ELEMENT OF THE DATES OF THE JUDGMENTS AND SENTENCING IN THE PRIOR CONVICTIONS. THE HABITUAL ENHANCEMENT OF THE SENTENCE, THEREFORE, WAS ILLEGAL AS HAVING BEEN COMPLETED BY A COURT WITOUT JURISDICTION.

The habitual portion of the indictment filed against Evans alleged the following as the basis for such habitual charge.

and said Larry Evans, upon conviction hereof, should be sentenced as a habitual offender as provided in Sections 99-19-81 or 99-19-83, Mississippi Code Annotated, 1972, as amended, in that he, the said Larry Evans, has been twice previously convicted of felonies, to-wit: the crime of armed robbery in the Circuit Court of the First Judicial District of Hinds County, Mississippi, on July 8, 1999, in Cause number 98-4-621 in said Court, and the crime of motor vehicle theft in the Circuit Court of the First Judicial District of Hinds County, Mississippi, on July 8,1999, in Cause number 98-2-408 in said Court, each of said felony convictions being upon charges separately brought and arising out of separate incidents at different times, and upon each of said convictions, the said Larry Evans, was sentenced to separate terms of one year or more in a penal institution of the above-named state and did serve at least one year of said sentences, said offenses hereinabove charged are based on the same act or transaction or are based on two (2) or more acts or transactions connected together or constituting parts of a common scheme or plan within the meaning of Section 99-7-2, Mississippi Code Annotated, 1972, as amended, contrary to the form of the statute in such cases made and provided and against the peace and dignity of the State of Mississippi.

The habitual portion of the indictment failed to allege the specific date in which the previous sentences, which the state sought to use against Evans to forfeit many years of his life, were imposed. The record, as it is quoted above, word for word, confirms this. This cannot be disputed and defense counsel never raised this issue in the trial court below. Such failure was deficient and prejudicial to Appellant since if this claim had been raised before the trial court by counsel it would have deprived the trial court of jurisdiction to hear the habitual portion of the indictment or to impose a habitual sentence.

The State did not properly charge Larry Evans in the charging instrument. Had the defense counsel raised this issue trial court would not have been able to allow the state multiple chances to correct the error which it failed to correct before filing the indictment. Where the indictment was faulty in its attempt to charge the habitual offender status with specific dates of judgment and sentence, not necessarily the date of conviction, then that portion of the sentence should be voided. The state could not have been given a second chance to correct the allegations during the burficated hearing proceedings, without first having sought to have the indictment

amended and never corrected the failure to cite the date of judgment and conviction. This court should vacate the habitual portion of the sentence.

The State never made any attempt to correct the botched indictment which failed to meet the required elements of habitual offender status as set forth under Miss. Code Ann. Sec. 99-19-81 and Rule 11.03(1) of the Miss. Rules of Cir. and Cty Court Practice. Rule 11.03(1) provides that:

The indictment must include both the principal charge and a charge of previous convictions. <u>The indictment must allege</u> with particularity the nature or description of the offense constituting the previous convictions, the state or federal jurisdiction of any previous conviction, and <u>the date of judgment</u>.

In the instant case the indictment makes no such allegation and the argument of the state should not be accepted as a substitute to the indictment's failure to give written notice of this crucial information. The state never amended the indictment to cure such ailment.

The plea and sentencing colloquy reveals that the prosecution, nor trial court, never mentioned any information of habitual offender status when the sentence was recommended and the recommendation was imposed in open court. The trial court never sentenced Evans as a habitual offender. This information merely showed up on the sentencing order. Where the habitual offender sentence was not imposed in open court then it was an illegal sentence. Trial counsel should have raised this issue and his failure to do so meets the requirements of Strickland since such failures were deficient and prejudicial to the Appellant.

The guarantee of Counsel cannot be satisfied by mere formal or the formality appointment of counsel, just having a person who happens to be a lawyer present in court, and standing along side the accused, is not enough to satisfy the Constitutional Command. The State would not provide funding for Investigators, or Expert Witnesses to analyze the evidence, which

the Attorney should have argued this issue, but did not. Mississippi Court Rules, Rules of Professional Conduct- Preamble; A Lawyer's Responsibilities states" A lawyer should demonstrate respect for the legal system and for those who serve it, including Judges, other lawyers and Public Officials. While it is a lawyer's duty, when necessary, (to challenge the rectitude of official action), it is also a lawyer's duty to uphold legal process." Therefore, Mrdefense counsel's failure to challenge that State's actions, as well as those of the court, concerning the jurisdiction of the court to impose a habitual sentence and the fact that the trial court never imposed such a sentence in open court, violated the rules of the Court, causing a Due Process violation. In the Supreme Court's own words quoted in Strickland v. Washington, "the court recognized that the Sixth Amendment Right to Counsel exists, and is needed in order to protect the fundamental right to a fair trial. However, even though the Right to Counsel exists, it does not always mean that the client's fundamental rights are protected. See Powell v. Alabama, 287 U.S. 45 (1932), Johnson v. Zerbst, 304 U.S. 458 (1938), Gideon v. Wainwright, 372 U.S. 335 (1963). Furthermore, in Winters v. State, 797 So.2d 307 (Miss. 2001), who cited; Gray v. State, 549 So.2d 1316 (Miss. 1989) quoting, "it has been established that where fundamental rights are violated, procedural rules give way to present a miscarriage of justice." Therefore, in the light of all the circumstances, the ultimate focus of inquiry must be on the fundamental fairness of the said proceedings in this case, as those possibilities, conjoined with the unreasonableness of counsel's failure to investigate, are more than sufficient to establish a violation of the Sixth Amendment, and the appellant is entitled to a new sentencing proceeding.

#### **ISSUE THREE**

THE PROSECUTION DEPRIVED AND INTERFERED WITH APPELLANT'S RIGHT TO KNOWLEDGE OF THE EVIDENCE AGAINST HIM IN ORDER TO COERCE AND ENTICE A PLEA OF GUILTY, IN VIOLATION OF THE 5TH AND 14TH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

(3) That the Petitioner's right to be confronted with the witness again him under the 6th Amendment of the United States, and Mississippi Constitution, Article 3, §26, were violated by the State's failure to allow him a copy of the deposition of the accusations, and a chance to possibly impeach the credibility of the witness against him, to wit, Rufus Smith and William Thomas, (co-defendant), Rule 609 (a), Mississippi Rules of Evidence-" General Rule. For the purpose of attacking the credibility of a witness." The defendant was entitled to notice of the accusation's that were against him, with a (reasonable opportunity to be heard) in his own defense, and also to be allowed to cross examine a witness, or witnesses as to their bias accusations may infringe on the defendant's right to confront the witness or witnesses, Johnson v. State, 756 So.2d 4 (Miss. 1999). A 10 (10) day notice to the defendant, and his appointed attorney, Mr. Labarre, that both co-defendant's were going to testify against him at trial, was not enough notice to allow a proper defense, and Mr. Labarre should have requested a continuance, but he did not request one nor did he argue the fact. In a prior case that is similar to this case, Malone v. State 486 So.2d 367 (Miss. 1986) which states in part, "Upon a prima facie showing of the existence of an advanced plea agreement between the State and a co-defendant who was the State's principal witness, whereby in exchange for testifying for the state, the co-defendant would receive a lenient sentence for Armed Robbery, a defendant, who had been convicted for the (same robbery) as accessory before the fact, may be entitled to Post Conviction Relief where the agreement had not been disclosed prior to his trial. "Generally out of Court statement's by a

co-defendant which incriminate the defendant should not be allowed at late date as evidence. particularly to plea bargaining process, since it can not be known whether the co-defendant will testify and be subject to cross examination to avoid violating the defendant's right to confront witnesses against him. Smith v. State, 754 So.2d 1159, 1162 (Miss. 2000). The principle was established by the United States Supreme Court in Bruton v. United States, 391 U. S. 123, 88 S. Ct. 1620, 20 L.Ed 476 (1968). In Bruton the court held "that the confrontation clause of the 6th Amendment is violated when a co-defendant's incriminating statement is introduced at a Joint Trial." Here, the defendant would put this to test, same goes for plea hearings in weighing evidence of 2 co-defendants and their testimony, or statements and/or violating the defendant's right to confront them. Mississippi Rules of Evidence, Rule 609 (a) would have allowed the defendant here to use (key witnesses) prior Armed Robbery, of the same store in question, to wit, Rufus Smith, who was on probation for this crime, for purposes of impeaching his credibility as a witness, but in exchange for his statement, he was sentence to 5 years in the Mississippi Department of Corrections for pointing the finger at the defendant as being the ring leader of the robbery, when in all reality, robbery was the sole idea and action of Rufus Smith, as payback to them for him getting caught the first time for robbing this store, and he was in fact, on probation at the time of this robbery, thus, he had a lot to loose if he was convicted of robbing the same store again. Thereafter, the Appellant claimed that he was entitled to a review, and/or an Evidentiary Hearing regarding the facts, and as to the Constitutional violations concerning the matter in question regarding his Due Process Rights.

#### ISSUE FOUR

APPELLANT SUFFERED A VIOLATION OF HIS CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS UNDER THE 5TH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WHERE RECORDS WERE WITHHELD UPON NUMEROUS REQUESTS IN REGARDS TO PREPARATION OF HIS POST CONVICTION COLLATERAL RELIEF MOTION.

That the Appellant's Rights to Due Process, and the Equal Protection under the 14th Amendment to the United States Constitution, and Article 3,§14 of the Mississippi Constitution were violated by his (numerous) requests for the Court's Records and Transcripts which are a direct result of his Conviction, the same conviction in which he is now forced to file this petition without any records and transcripts to property address this complaint of his rights being violated, this is very prejudicial to the defendant. Had Evans been provided with such transcript he would have been able to demonstrate in the trial court that the Court never sentenced him as a habitual offender and that his trial counsel was ineffective. In Fisher v. State, 532 So.2d 992 (Miss. 1988), the Mississippi Supreme Court discussed a claim that, Britt v. North Carolina, 404 U.S. 226, 227, 92 S. Ct. 431, 433, 30 L. Ed 400 (1971), required a transcript of prior proceedings to be provided. While holding that there is no need to provide a prior transcript from an (unrelated) case, the court held that there can be no doubt... that the state (must) provide an indigent with a transcript of prior proceedings when that transcript is needed... Fisher, 532 So.3d at 999, (quoting Britt, 404 U. S. at 227). Thus, the Appellant, who was in need of his records and transcript in this case, respectfully moved the trial court for an order, compelling Barbara Dunn, the clerk of the court, to provide the Appellant with a copy of the records and transcript in Cause No. 06-329-02, a new Motion For Records and Transcripts was filed with the trial court which the trial court refused to grant.

#### **ISSUE FIVE**

THAT THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO ADDRESS THE ISSUES OF THE POST CONVICTION RELIEF MOTION OR TO CONDUCT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING AND FAILED TO COMPLY WITH THE POST CONVICTION RELIEF STATUTE WHERE COURT DENIED SUMMARILY DENIED THE MOTION WITHOUT REVIEWING THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE PLEA SINCE THE PLEA TRANSCRIPT WAS NOT MADE AVAILABLE UNTIL IT WAS TRANSCRIBED BY THE COURT REPORTER ON DECEMBER 17, 2009 AND FILED WITH THE CIRCUIT COURT CLERK ON THE SAME DAY.

Mississippi Code Ann. § 99-39-11 (1) provides that when the post conviction collateral relief motion is filed:

(1) The original motion, together with all the files, records, transcripts and correspondence relating to the judgment under attack, shall be examined promptly by the judge to whom it is assigned.

In the instant case the trial court never complied with the statute before summarily denying the post conviction relief motion in a half page order. (C.P. 85).

The facts and information presented in this brief demonstrates that the trial court was manifestly wrong in summarily denying the motion. The sentence, as a matter of law, was not imposed under the habitual statute and the sentencing order, in it's present state, is illegal. This fact along, without any of the other claims, demonstrates that Appellant is entitled to relief and the post conviction relief motion should not have been summarily dismissed. Hunt v. State, 874 So.2d 448 (Miss. 2004).

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