IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

LARRY EVANS

APPELLANT

VS.

NO. 2009-CP-0524-COA

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: JEFFREY A. KLINGFUSS SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL MISSISSIPPI BAR NOTICE

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This appeal proceeds from the Circuit Court of Hinds County wherein defendant was indicted for capital murder, in the course of armed robbery; aggravated assault; felon in possession of a firearm (C.p. 2-3). Defendant petitioned the trial court to plead guilty to Manslaughter with a gun and Aggravated assault. The trial court sentenced defendant to 20 years for the manslaughter and 15 years for aggravated assault the sentences to be served consecutively. (C.p. 10-11).

In December 2008 defendant filed a motion for post-conviction relief (C.p. 27-84, petition, exhibits). The motion was denied by the trial court on March 9th 2009. Defendant timely noticed this instant appeal. (C.p. 86).

1

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Defendant and two other in conspiracy entered the City Food Mart store in the first judicial district of Hinds County. All three men were armed. One man jumped the counter and shot one of the clerks (not killing him). [This was all caught on videotape.] Defendant Evans chased after one of the other clerks out of the store, shooting the clerk in the stomach and killing him on the pavement. The other two gunmen remained in the store demanding money. (Transcript of guilty plea, pp.6-7).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

I. & III.

DEFENDANT WAIVED ANY SUPPOSED DISCOVERY VIOLATION WHEN HE PLED GUILTY.

There was no discovery violation and defendant's guilty plea included a valid waiver of any evidentiary deficiencies or discovery claims.

II.

TRIAL COUNSEL WAS NOT INEFFECTIVE. DEFENDANT WAS INDICTED AS AN HABITUAL OFFENDER AND PLED GUILTY AS ONE.

Defendant was properly indicted as an habitual offender, knowingly petitioned the court admitting a prior conviction. Defendant has not shown deficient performance or prejudice.

IV.

THE TRIAL COURT RULED CORRECTLY IN DENYING DEFENDANT'S REQUEST FOR TRANSCRIPTS.

Defendant failed to demonstrate some specific need which would require the State to furnish free copies of trial records for use in collateral proceedings.

V.

DEFENDANT WAS NOT ENTITLED TO AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING.

The trial court had sufficient records to dismiss the petition without need of the transcript of the guilty plea.

ARGUMENT I. & III. DEFENDANT WAIVED ANY SUPPOSED DISCOVERY VIOLATION WHEN HE PLED GUILTY.

Defendant claims he was denied his due process rights because he didn't find out the State was going to call his co-defendant's as witnesses at his trial. This claim is raised as the first and third issue in error. The State will respond once for both issues.

The record clearly indicates the reasons defendant pled guilty. He was to get a much reduced sentence, from a potential of two mandatory life sentences to the maximum sentence for each charge. Additionally, one charge was dropped (felon in possession of firearm) with no revocation of prior sentences. (Tr. 6-9).

The law is clear, a valid guilty plea waives any evidentiary or discovery issues.

¶ 12. Campbell argues his convictions should be set aside because he was not provided discovery. The record reveals that a motion for discovery was filed by Campbell's attorney on April 3, 2002. The trial court took judicial notice of the fact that the district attorney's office in the fifth circuit court district routinely provides discovery to defense attorneys as soon as a motion is filed, and without the necessity of entering a court order. However, the record is silent as to whether discovery was received.

¶ 13. In addition, as noted above, a "valid guilty plea operates as a waiver of all non-jurisdictional rights or defects which are incident to trial." Anderson v. State, 577 So.2d 390, 391 (Miss.1991). Since we hold below that Campbell's guilty plea was valid, we find this issue to be without merit.

Campbell v. State, 878 So.2d 227 (Miss.App. 2004).

The State would as this reviewing Court to adopt the rationale of *Campbell*, where there was no evidence of discovery being received and yet the court held the guilty plea to be valid.

Sub judice, defendant admits he knew about the witnesses 10 days before trial. Additionally, the apparent motivation for the dropping of charges from Capital Murder down to manslaughter was for defendant's health issues and an effort to save and local taxpayer expense. See, *McGowan v. Mississippi State Oil & Gas Bd.*, 604 So.2d 312, 316 (Miss. 1992), citing – R. Posner, *Economic Analysis of Law* 572-74 (3d ed. 1986)(Economic motivation for legal decisions). Defendant knew what the evidence was (it was caught on video) and he eagerly accepted the offer and got just what he was told.

Consequently, there was no discovery violation and defendant's guilty plea included a valid waiver of any evidentiary deficiencies or discovery claims.

No relief should be granted based on this allegation of error.

II.

TRIAL COUNSEL WAS NOT INEFFECTIVE. DEFENDANT WAS INDICTED AS AN HABITUAL OFFENDER AND PLED GUILTY AS ONE.

Next defendant claims he was denied effective assistance of counsel in that had his attorney done some research he would have found the habitual portion of the indictment defective and he would not be sentenced as an habitual offender.

Interesting, defendant petitioned the court to plead guilty. (Petition to Enter a

Plea of Guilty, c.p. 13-16). This petition was signed and acknowledged by defendant.

Paragraphs 11 and 17 of petition cover this issue. He knew he was indicted as an

habitual offender and acknowledged such. Further he acknowledged a prior felony

conviction.

The law is clear:

¶ 12. In order to be sentenced as a habitual offender, the State is required to properly indict the accused as a habitual offender, then prove the prior offenses by competent evidence beyond a reasonable doubt, and provide the accused a reasonable opportunity to challenge the State's proof. Madden v. State, 991 So.2d 1231, $1236(\P 20)$ (Miss.Ct.App.2008) (citation omitted). However, when the accused makes a valid decision to forego his or her right to a criminal trial and instead pleads guilty to the principal offense as a habitual offender, he or she waives the right that the prosecution must prove the prior offense(s) beyond a reasonable doubt. Id. (citing Jefferson v. State, 556 So.2d 1016, 1019 (Miss.1989)).

 \P 13. Joiner's indictment delineated five previous felony offenses for which he was convicted. In Joiner's plea petition, which he signed, he admitted that he had been previously convicted of the same felony

offenses set forth in the indictment, which he listed as follows: grand larceny, simple assault on a law enforcement officer (two counts), attempted armed robbery, and burglary.

¶ 14. Thus, having submitted a plea petition to the circuit court in which he admitted to these prior felony convictions and having then entered a valid guilty plea to the principal offense as a habitual offender, we find that the circuit court properly sentenced Joiner as a habitual offender.

Joiner v. State, 2010 WL 432280, 2 -3 (Miss.App. 2010)(decided Feb 9, 2010)(emphasis added).

It is the position of the State defendant was indicted as an habitual offender

under two statutory provisions. So, he could have gotten (prosecutorial or judicial

discretion), life for each of the offenses as charged and indicted or just the maximum

sentence for each.

¶ 6. In his other issue on appeal, Sowell argues that his trial counsel was ineffective for failing to object to the amendment of the indictment charging Sowell as an habitual offender under Section 99-19-83. Sowell must demonstrate that his trial counsel's performance was deficient and the deficient performance prejudiced his defense. Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 687, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984). In the context of a guilty plea, Sowell must demonstrate that his counsel's performance fell below the range of competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases and that but for the attorney's substandard performance, he would have insisted on going to trial. Alexander v. State, 605 So.2d 1170, 1173 (Miss.1992). Even from the scant record before this Court, it is clear that Sowell's attorney was able to negotiate a reduced sentence for Sowell, from a possible life sentence under Section 99-19-83 to five years under Section 99-18-81. We cannot find that Sowell's trial counsel performed in an ineffective manner. This issue is without merit.

Sowell v. State, 970 So.2d 752, 754 (Miss.App. 2007).

A similar rationale was deemed by the Court to be insufficient to find ineffective assistance where the attorney negotiated from a maximum life sentence to merely the maximum sentence for the offense.

¶ 7. During the plea colloquy Smith stated that he was satisfied with his counsel's representation and his counsel had not pressured him into pleading guilty. The trial court also found that Smith's ineffective assistance of counsel claims were waived by his guilty plea. Furthermore, the trial court also noted that, "Thanks to the work of Smith's counsel, he pled guilty to the crime of burglary of a building as a habitual offender under the 'Little Habitual Offender Statute', and thus received a seven year sentence instead of the aforementioned life sentence." Smith was originally indicted as an habitual offender, which carried a mandatory sentence of life without the possibility of parole. Smith has failed to meet the requirements of Strickland; thus, we find no merit to this issue.

Smith v. State, 928 So.2d 190, 191 (Miss.App. 2005).

Defendant has not shown deficient performance nor prejudice, consequently

no relief should be granted based on this allegation of error.

IV.

THE TRIAL COURT RULED CORRECTLY IN DENYING DEFENDANT'S REQUEST FOR TRANSCRIPTS.

Prior to his filing for post-conviction relief defendant filed a motion for records and transcripts. (C.p. 20-24). The trial court denied the motion (c.p. 26), finding defendant had not demonstrated a need for the transcripts and that he was not entitled to a free transcript, citing *Fleming v. State*, 553 So.2d 505, 508 (Miss. 1989).

Looking to the record, specifically the fill in the blank 'form' motion request for records and transcripts – there is no specific individualized reason given for the need for the records.

 $\P 5...$ The trial court will not, however, be found in error for declining to require the State to subsidize a "fishing expedition" by Shanks; the trial court may reasonably require him "to demonstrate some specific need" before requiring the State to furnish free copies of trial records for use in collateral proceedings. See Fleming, 553 So.2d at 506[.]

Shanks v. State, 906 So.2d 760, 762 (Miss.App. 2004)(citations omitted).

The trial court found the same to be true in his order denying relief.

Consequently, no relief should be granted on this allegation of error.

V.

DEFENDANT WAS NOT ENTITLED TO AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING.

In this last allegation of trial court error defendant asserts he was entitled to an evidentiary hearing. Specifically because the trial court could not have had the transcript to review in denying the motion for post-conviction relief.

¶ 18.... Generally, when the record does not contain the necessary transcripts, "this Court must presume that the trial court acted properly." Bates v. State, 914 So.2d at $299(\P 7)$. Therefore, we find that there was sufficient factual basis to support Conlee's conviction of the transfer of a controlled substance.

Conlee v. State, 23 So.3d 535, 540 -541 (Miss.App. 2009).

It must be noted the trial court denied pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 99-39-

11(2) which means it was 'dismissed' as being without merit. Further, the trial court

may make such findings based on the record available at the time.

However, not on appeal, we do have the record of the transcript. It is worth noting that defendant, with the transcript before him, does not cite once to the transcript to any point of law or omission that would support his position on appeal.

The State would argue the trial court had sufficient information for consideration, as well as defendant's petition (and only his supporting affidavit) to dismiss the motion. *Miss. Code Ann.* § 99-39-11(2).

¶ 6. This Court will not disturb a trial court's denial of post-conviction relief unless that court's factual findings are clearly erroneous. Forshee

v. State, 853 So.2d 136, 139(¶ 16) (Miss.Ct.App.2003).

Jackson v. State, 986 So.2d 326 (Miss.App. 2007).

Looking to the full record on review only emphasizes the correctness of the trial courts ruling to deny post-conviction relief.

No relief should no be granted based upon this claim of error.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the arguments presented herein as supported by the record on appeal the State would ask this reviewing court to affirm the trial court denial of postconviction relief.